
CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
VALLEY CITY, NORTH DAKOTA 

Tuesday, February 4, 2025 
5:00 PM 

 

The City Commission Meeting will begin on Tuesday, February 4, 2025 at 5:00 PM CT, at the City 
Commission Chambers, 254 2nd Avenue NE, Valley City, ND. 
 
The meeting is also available to view online https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89777732480 or listen by 
calling (1 346 248 7799) Webinar ID:  897 7773 2480.

Board of City Commissioners  Role  
Dave Carlsrud President  
Michael Bishop Commissioner  
Duane Magnuson Commissioner  
Jeffrey Erickson Commissioner  
Dick Gulmon Commissioner  

 

 

 

Department Supervisor Role 
Gwen Crawford City Administrator 
Carl Martineck 
Brenda Klein 

City Attorney 
Finance Director 

Brandy Johnson Deputy Auditor 
Tina Current City Assessor 
Gary Jacobson Public Works Accountant 
Scott Magnuson Fire Chief 
Nick Horner Police Chief 
KLJ/Moore City Engineers 
  

NEXT RESOLUTION NO. 2474  NEXT ORDINANCE NO. 1169 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (PLEASE STAND) 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

Roll Call: Magnuson  Erickson  Gulmon Bishop  Carlsrud 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA  
A. Approve Minutes from the January 21, 2025, Finance and Commission Meeting Minutes. Page 3 
B. Approve the Raffle Permit requests for: 

 Harvest for Hunger Campaign at CHS Dakota Plains Ag on 3.28.2025   Page 6 
 Sanford Valley City Clinic at The Reserve at Woodland on 2.7.2025 
 Ducks Unlimited Barnes County Chapter at Valley City Eagles Club on 3.15.2025 

C. Approve 2024-25 Contractor License for: 
 Pine Country Landscaping & Nursery, Valley City ND     Page 15 

 

Roll Call: Erickson Gulmon Bishop  Magnuson Carlsrud 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Attorney General’s “A Citizen’s Guide to North Dakota Open Records & Open Meetings Laws” *A member of the public does not have the right to 
speak to the governing body at an open meeting.  The public is only entitled to see and hear what happens at a meeting, and to record or broadcast 
those observations. 

 No personal attacks to persons present or not 
 No inflammatory language used during time that you have the platform 
 5-minute maximum or as directed by the chair 
 Thank you for participating in City Government. 

 
ORDINANCE 
1. Approve First Reading of Ordinance 1168, an ordinance to amend and reenact subsection 1 of   Page 17 

section 4-01-03 of the Valley City Municipal Code related to new alcoholic beverage license for  
private golf courses. (City Attorney Martineck) 

 
Roll Call: Gulmon Bishop  Magnuson Erickson Carlsrud 

RESOLUTION 
1. Approve Resolution 2473, A Resolution to Annex Territory. (City Attorney Martineck)  Page 19 

 
Roll Call: Bishop  Magnuson Erickson Gulmon Carlsrud 
     

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89777732480


 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
NB1. Approve Letter of Intent for Barnes County Multi Hazard Mitigation Plan. (President Carlsrud)  

 
Roll Call: Magnuson  Erickson  Gulmon Bishop  Carlsrud Page 21 
 

NB2. Annexation Exhibit - Oxbow Addition/Woodland Park. (City Engineer)   Page 22 
 
 Roll Call: Erickson Gulmon Bishop  Magnuson Carlsrud 

 
NB3.  Approve Task Order for Valley City NW Water Tower: Environmental Documentation & Final Design. 
 (City Engineer)           Page 24 
 

 Roll Call: Gulmon Bishop  Magnuson Erickson Carlsrud 
 
NB4.  Approve Task Order for Final Design for Hyland Park Estates Water, Sanitary Sewer, Storm Sewer and 
 Paving  Improvements. (City Engineer)        Page 34 

 
Roll Call: Bishop  Magnuson Erickson Gulmon Carlsrud 

 
NB5. Approve the 2025 Contract for Custodial Maintenance Services. (City Attorney Martineck) Page 37 
 

Roll Call: Magnuson  Erickson  Gulmon Bishop  Carlsrud 
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 

CITY UPDATES & COMMISSION REPORTS 

ADJOURN 



CITY COMMISSION FINANCE MEETING 
VALLEY CITY, NORTH DAKOTA 

Tuesday, January 21, 2025 
2:30 PM 

Called to Order 
President Carlsrud called the meeting to order at 2:30 PM. 
Roll Call 
Members present: President Carlsrud, Commissioner Bishop via Zoom, Commissioner Magnuson, 
Commissioner Erickson, Commissioner Gulmon.  
Other present: City Administrator Crawford, City Attorney Martineck, Finance Director Klein, Police 
Lieutenant Rustebakke, Administrative Assistant Hintz 
Agenda Items 
Review monthly bills/reports. Finance Director Klein reviewed the monthly bills and reports.  
Review Change Order #1 for Paving Improvement District No. 126. Engineer Peterson reviewed the 
change order for Paving Improvement District No 126. Each item was discussed.  
Discussion on the Annexation of the Oxbow Addition/Woodland Park area into the replat of the 
Woodland Park. This is the entrance and was not part of the original annexation. The Park Board has been 
reached out to regarding adding the golf course to the annexation. This does not affect the replat but 
makes sense to take care of when we are working on the replat. The consensus is to move forward.  
Discuss creation of golf course alcoholic beverage license. Discussion took place on creating a new golf 
course alcoholic beverage license lead by Attorney Martineck. The consensus was to move forward with 
the license process.  
Alternative subdividing and platting procedures. Valley City already has one of the quickest 
subdivisions and platting processes in the state. Questions came up whether we should have some 
exemptions to the platting process on the joining of 2 lots, lot split or a lot line adjustment. In those cases, 
as long as it was per code, it would not need to go to the Boards for approval, the planning administer 
would approve it would go forward without formal action of either Commission. This will be sent to 
Planning & Zoning for their view.   
Discuss application process for zoning nonconformities. After some discussion, this item will be sent 
to Planning & Zoning for their view.   
Discuss Paving Improvement District 130 Protests. A Protest with signatures was received with over 
52% of the area protesting. James Jensen, Todd Ingstad and Cory Ravnaas shared their reasoning for the 
protest. The Commission’s consensus was to accept the protests, start the paving project over with a new 
paving district and move the official bid date to October.  
Department Reports 
Sanitation Department 
Sanitation Supervisor Swart reported on the Electronic Disposal Week and how well it went. She hopes 
to have another week later this year. Reminder to have your garbage out by 7AM.  
Electric Department 
Electrical Superintendent Senf reported that his crew has taken down most of the holiday lighting. He 
has a couple guys monitoring load management 24/7. Review of last year’s outages showed that the 
power was on 99.999% of the time. Discussion was had on power to the new light posts. No special 
circuits will be added.  
Fire Department 
Fire Chief Magnuson shared a review of 2024’s calls. On dangerous buildings, the building on currently 
in Viking Trailer Court is in the process and being removed and there is one on Viking Drive that the 
owner has secured a crew for a spring demolition & removal. Assistant Fire Chief Coit gave a report on 
the 2024 Fire Extinguisher Service Report and we are up in receivables. He discussed that the more he 
does with servicing he has less time for inspections. As this is covered in our code, it was discussed and 
will be brought up at the next Finance Meeting. Coit also gave the 2024 Building Report. Residential 



builds were up, additions were down. Renovations were also up for the year. Commercial builds were 
down as well as additions but the renovations were up. New & Institutional builds and additions were 
both up. Total permits in general were all up.  
Police Department 
Police Lieutenant Rustebakke went over the Calls for Service Report for the Police Department. There 
was a compliance check held and 10 of the 14 establishments passed. The annual Fraternal Order of 
Police Kids & Cops Event was held and the majority of the Department helped. They are currently 
working an Active Shooter Training with CHI Mercy Hospital. There are several people going through 
back ground checks for hiring as well as they did hire 1 person who will be starting in February. 
Street Department 
Operations Supervisor Klemisch (via Zoom) shared that he signed with Pittsburgh Tank & Tower to have 
the John Deere tower painted this summer. VCSU will be paying a share to put their logo on the tower. 
He also signed an agreement with Midco Marine & Diving to dive the towers this summer. The Water 
Crew has been working on the Lead Line Inventory. The Street Crew is working on Christmas Tree 
pickup and painted the inside of the Pole Shed for housing of the sewer truck when the new shop is built. 
The Osh Kosh snow blower has been returned.  
Administration 
City Administrator Crawford discussed the Bills and Legislative Hearings that they will be attending that 
effect our City and Residents.  
Agenda Items Continued 
Discussion related to a Single-Family Housing Pilot Program. Jennifer Feist, with the Development 
Corp. explained the new program. The goals of the program are to increase housing inventory, increase 
our tax base, increase home ownership and increase population in Valley City and Barnes County. The 
proposed investments from the City were discussed. Invest $10,000 per new home that meets the program 
guidelines sourced from City funds, waiver of water and sanitary sewer tap fees including temporary 
meter charges, approve $118,750 sourced from the City Sales Tax dedicated to economic development, 
and fund up to six (6) homes initially. 
Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:50PM. 
 



CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
VALLEY CITY, NORTH DAKOTA 

Tuesday, January 21, 2025 
 
 
President Carlsrud called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM.  
 
Members present: President Carlsrud, Commissioner Erickson, Commissioner Gulmon, Commissioner 
Magnuson, Commissioner Bishop vis Zoom 
 
Others: City Administrator Crawford, City Attorney Martineck, Finance Director Klein, Police Lieutenant 
Rustebakke and Administrative Assistant Hintz 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Add to the Agenda New Business Items: NB8 Consider Support for HB 1577, NB9 Accept Protests 
for Paving Improvement District No. 130 and NB10 Consider Changing Bid Date for 2nd St N, 3rd 
Ave NE & 4th Ave NE Reconstruction Project from April to October 10, 2025. Withdraw Resolution 
2471 and 2472.  
Commissioner Gulmon moved to approve, seconded by Commissioner Magnuson.  
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
PROCLAMATION 
President Carlsrud proclaimed January 26 through February 1, 2025 to be Catholic Schools Week.  
 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA  
A. Approve Minutes from the January 7, 2025 Commission Meeting and the January 10, 2025 

Special Commission Meeting.          
B. Approve the Site Authorization request for: 

 North Dakota Horse Foundation at Sky Lanes Ending 6.30.2025.     
C. Approve the Raffle Permit requests for:         

 Trinity Lutheran Stewardship at Trinity Lutheran Church on 2.15.25.    
 Student Nurse Organization at Valley City State University on 4.2.25 
 Education Foundation at Hi-Liner Activity Center on 1.28.25 

D. Approve 2025 License Renewals for:        
 Kotaco Fuels for L.P. Gas Permit 
 Bumpa’s Ice Cream for Mobile Frozen Dessert Vendor 

Commissioner Bishop moved to approve, seconded by Commissioner Magnuson.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
ORDINANCE 
Approve the second and final reading of Ordinance 1167, an ordinance to amend and reenact section 
7-03-05.1 of the Valley City Municipal Code related to removal of snow and ice from sidewalks.  
Commissioner Magnuson moved to approve, seconded by Commissioner Gulmon.  
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Approve Monthly Bills for the City and Public Works in the Amount of $1,293,654.   
Commissioner Bishop moved to approve, seconded by Commissioner Magnuson.  
Motion passed unanimously. 
Approve Request for Funds from the Valley City Barnes County Development Corporation for a 
Single-Family Housing Pilot Program.  
Commissioner Magnuson moved to approve $10,000 per new home, or up to $3,200 for properties in the 
Renaissance Zone, that meet the program guidelines sourced from City funds, approve waiver of water 
and sanitary sewer tap fees including temporary meter charges, approve $118,750 sourced from the City 
Sales Tax dedicated to economic development, fund up to six (6) homes initially, seconded by 
Commissioner Gulmon.  
Motion passed unanimously. 
Approve Purchase Agreement for the PFP House at 231 9th Ave NE.   
Commissioner Erickson moved to approve, seconded by Commissioner Magnuson.  
Motion passed unanimously. 
Approve Cost Share Agreement Reimbursement Valley City NW Standpipe Replacement. 
Commissioner Magnuson moved to approve, seconded by Commissioner Gulmon.  



Motion passed unanimously. 
Approve Second Addendum to Contract with City of Fargo Landfill.  
Commissioner Gulmon moved to approve, seconded by Commissioner Erickson.  
Motion passed unanimously. 
Approve Task Order Amendment for Construction Engineering for  
Paving Improvement District No. 125, etc. – 2nd Ave NE/3rd St NE/3rd Ave NE. 
Commissioner Magnuson moved to approve, seconded by Commissioner Bishop.  
Motion passed unanimously. 
Approve Amendment to City Section 125 Flexible Benefits Plan. 
Commissioner Gulmon moved to approve, seconded by Commissioner Magnuson.  
Motion passed unanimously. 
Consider Support for HB 1577. 
Commissioner Bishop moved to approve, seconded by Commissioner Gulmon.  
Motion passed unanimously. 
Accept Protests for Paving Improvement District No. 130. 
Commissioner Gulmon moved to approve, seconded by Commissioner Magnuson.  
Motion passed unanimously. 
Consider Changing Bid Date for 2nd St N, 3rd Ave NE & 4th Ave NE Reconstruction Project from 
April to October 10, 2025. 
Commissioner Bishop moved to approve, seconded by Commissioner Gulmon.  
Roll Call Vote:  Bishop – Aye, Magnuson – Nay, Gulmon – Aye, Erickson - Aye, Carlsrud – Aye. 
Motion Passed. 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
City Administrator Crawford talked about the busy months ahead watching the House & Senate Bills 
that affect our City. She and Mayor Carlsrud will be speaking on several.   
City Assessor Current reminded all to sign up on line for the 2025 Primary Residence Tax Credit. She 
also suggested that we check out the new Assessor Website.  
Commissioner Gulmon spoke on the financial state of the City. Our revenues are currently out pacing 
our expenses so we seem to be doing well.  
Mayor Carlsrud thanked all the City Employees for what you do every day for the City and its 
Residents, especially during this brutal weather. Thank you to the Commissioners for what you do.  
Please remember to follow the latest happenings going on at the Capitol.  
ADJOURN 
Meeting was adjourned at 5:38 P.M. 
 
 
 

Attested to by: 
 

              
Brenda Klein, Finance Director    Dave Carlsrud, President of the  
City of Valley City     City of Valley City Commission 
 
 























 
 

 ORDINANCE NO. 11687 
 
An ordinance to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 4-01-03 of the Valley City Municipal 

Code related to new alcoholic beverage license for private golf courses. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF 
VALLEY CITY, BARNES COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA, PURSUANT TO THE HOME RULE 
CHARTER OF THE CITY OF VALLEY CITY, NORTH DAKOTA: 
 
 
Section 1.  Amendment.  Section 7-03-05.1 of the Valley City Municipal Code is amended and reenacted 
as follows: 
 

Private golf course. 
a. The private golf course license shall be for the on-sale of liquor, beer, and wine by an operator 
of the food and beverage concession at a golf course that is operated by any person other than the 
City of Valley City or the city park district. 
b. Premises. A licensee shall be allowed to serve alcoholic beverages only in areas which are 
specifically identified as the licensed premises. This shall not include the parking lot or the golf 
course itself, except 

1. The licensed premises shall extend to allow service of alcoholic beverages on the golf course 
from one remote location or one mobile cart, if permitted by the operator of the golf course. No 
additional license is required for the sale of alcoholic beverages from a location or cart permitted 
under this provision. 

c. Restrictions. 
1. The licensee shall operate a restaurant on the licensee's licensed premises and shall have, on 
an annual basis, gross sales of food that are at least equal to gross sales of alcoholic beverages 
which are consumed in the dining area. The City shall verify compliance with this provision in 
the same manner as described in section 4-01-03(2)(b). 
2. The private golf course license is not transferrable and may be held only by the operator of 
the private golf course concession and shall terminate with the termination of the contract or 
lease of the concession. 
3. Off-sale is prohibited.  An alcoholic beverage may be removed from the licensed premises 
only if   

i. Removal of on-sale beverages from the licensed premises is authorized under state law; 
or  

ii. An alcoholic beverage that is purchased for on-sale consumption on the golf course is 
sealed (or resealed) in its original can or bottle at the time of removal.  A bottle or can 
that cannot be resealed must not be removed from the premises. 

d. The licensee may be approved for a special event permit under section 4-01-24. 
 
Section 2.  Any ordinances of the City of Valley City which are in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 
repealed. 
 
Section 3.  Should any part of this ordinance be declared unconstitutional or invalid, the remaining portion 
thereof will remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its final passage 



 
 

and approval. 
 
 
 
       _______________________________________ 
       Dave Carlsrud, President of the Board of City 
ATTEST:      Commissioners, City of Valley City 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Brenda Klein, Finance Director 
 
Introduction and First Reading:  
Second Reading and Final Approval: 
Publication and Effective Date:   
 



 RESOLUTION NO. 2473 
 

A RESOLUTION TO ANNEX TERRITORY  
 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Valley City, North Dakota, desires 
to annex territory contiguous to the corporate limits of the City pursuant to Section 40-51.2-07 of 
the North Dakota Century Code, as amended. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE CITY OF VALLEY CITY, BARNES COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA: 
 

1. That the boundaries of the City of Valley City, Barnes County, North Dakota, be and they 
are hereby extended so as to include and to incorporate within the corporate limits of the 
City of Valley City, Barnes County, North Dakota, the following tract(s) of land: 

 
All of the previously unannexed portions of the following, as shown in the 
attached map: 

 
Parcel A, Auditor’s Lot Three (3), Lot Three (3) of Oxbow Addition, and Tract 
A Lot One (1) Block Three (3) of Woodland Park Subdivision all being in the 
Southeast Quarter (SE¼) of Section Twenty-nine (29); Parcels B and E being 
in the Northeast Quarter (NE¼) of Section Thirty-two (32); and Parcels C and 
D being in the Northwest Quarter (NW¼) of Section Thirty-three (33) all within 
Township Once Hundred Forty (140) North, Range Fifty-eight (58) West of the 
Fifth Principal Meridian, within Barnes County, North Dakota.  

 
2. That a hearing to determine sufficiency of protests shall be held at 5:00pm on March 18, 

2025, in the City Hall Commission Chambers. 
 

3. That this Resolution and a Notice of Hearing shall be published in the official newspaper 
of the City of Valley City once a week for two consecutive weeks, with the first publication 
to take place at the earliest available opportunity. 
  

4. That written protests may be filed with the City Finance Director protesting against the 
annexation within 30 days of the first publication of this Resolution. 
 

5. That no later than March 3, 2025, a copy of this Resolution and Notice of Hearing shall be 
mailed by certified mail to the owners of each parcel of real property within the area to be 
annexed.  The Notice must inform landowners of the resolution, the time and place of 
hearing, and the requirement that protests must be filed in writing. 
 

6. That no later than March 11, 2025, a copy of this Resolution and Notice of Hearing shall 
be mailed by certified mail to each city, county and/or township directly affected by the 
land area proposed to be annexed.  



 

 
−2− 

 
7. That no state-owned property may be annexed without the written consent of the state 

agency or department having control of the property. 
 

8. That in the absence of protests filed by the owners of more than one-fourth of the territory 
proposed to be annexed as of the date of the adoption of this Resolution, the territory 
described in the resolution becomes a part of the city. 
 

9. That when a copy of this Resolution and an accurate map of the annexed area, certified by 
the President of the Board of City Commissioners, are filed and recorded with the county 
recorder, the annexation becomes effective. 
 
 
 
Dated this 4th day of February, 2025. 

 
      Approved: 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Dave Carlsrud, President of the Board of 
City Commissioners of the City of Valley City, 
Barnes County, North Dakota 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Brenda Klein, Finance Director 
 





SW
 1

/4
 2

8-
14

0-
58

SE
 1

/4
 2

9-
14

0-
58

SW
 1

/4
 2

9-
14

0-
58

N
W

 1
/4

 3
3-

14
0-

58

SW
 1

/4
 3

3-
14

0-
58

SE
 1

/4
 3

2-
14

0-
58

SW
 1

/4
 3

2-
14

0-
58

N
W

 1
/4

 3
2-

14
0-

58

N
E 

1/
4 

32
-1

40
-5

8

N
E 

1/
4 

28
-1

40
-5

8

SE
 1

/4
 2

8-
14

0-
58

SW
 1

/4
 2

8-
14

0-
58

N
W

 1
/4

 2
8-

14
0-

58

SE
 1

/4
 2

9-
14

0-
58

SW
 1

/4
 2

9-
14

0-
58

N
W

 1
/4

 2
9-

14
0-

58
N

E 
1/

4 
29

-1
40

-5
8

N
W

 1
/4

 3
3-

14
0-

58
N

W
 1

/4
 3

2-
14

0-
58

N
E 

1/
4 

32
-1

40
-5

8

A
N

N
EX

A
TI

O
N

 E
XH

IB
IT

Pa
rc

el
 A

, A
ud

ito
r's

 L
ot

 3
, L

ot
 3

 O
xb

ow
 A

dd
iti

on
, a

nd
 T

ra
ct

 A
Lo

t 1
 B

lo
ck

 3
 W

oo
dl

an
d 

Pa
rk

 S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 a
ll 

be
in

g 
in

 th
e

So
ut

he
as

t Q
ua

rt
er

 o
f S

ec
tio

n 
Tw

en
ty

-N
in

e 
(2

9)
;

Pa
rc

el
s 

B
 a

nd
 E

 b
ei

ng
 in

 th
e 

N
or

th
ea

st
 Q

ua
rt

er
 o

f S
ec

tio
n

Th
irt

y-
Tw

o 
(3

2)
; a

nd
 P

ar
ce

ls
 C

 a
nd

 D
 b

ei
ng

 in
 th

e 
N

or
th

w
es

t
Q

ua
rt

er
 o

f S
ec

tio
n 

Th
irt

y-
Th

re
e 

(3
3)

 a
ll 

w
ith

in
 T

ow
ns

hi
p 

O
ne

H
un

dr
ed

 F
or

ty
 (1

40
) N

or
th

, R
an

ge
 F

ift
y-

Ei
gh

t (
58

) W
es

t o
f t

he
Fi

fth
 P

rin
ci

pa
l M

er
id

ia
n,

 w
ith

in
 B

ar
ne

s 
C

ou
nt

y,
 N

or
th

 D
ak

ot
a

1"
=1

00
0

sc
al

e

50
0

0

fe
et

50
0

10
00

VI
C

IN
IT

Y 
M

AP

C
IT

Y 
LI

M
IT

S

Sheyenne Rive
r

Pa
rc

el
s 

Be
in

g 
An

ne
xe

d

N
O

TE
: P

or
tio

ns
 o

f L
ot

 3
 O

xb
ow

 A
dd

iti
on

 a
nd

 T
ra

ct
 A

 L
ot

 1
 B

lo
ck

 3
 W

oo
dl

an
d 

Pa
rk

 S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 w
er

e 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 a
nn

ex
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

ci
ty

be
fo

re
 b

ei
ng

 p
la

tte
d.

 T
he

 e
nt

ire
ty

 o
f L

ot
 3

 O
xb

ow
 A

dd
iti

on
 a

nd
 T

ra
ct

 A
 L

ot
 1

 B
lo

ck
 3

 W
oo

dl
an

d 
Pa

rk
 S

ub
di

vi
si

on
 w

ill 
be

 a
nn

ex
ed

 in
to

th
e 

C
ity

 o
f V

al
le

y 
C

ity
 w

ith
 th

is
 A

nn
ex

at
io

n.

Se
e 

Pa
ge

 2

PA
G

E 
1

Ex
is

tin
g 

C
ity

 L
im

its



N
E 

1/
4 

28
-1

40
-5

8

SE
 1

/4
 2

8-
14

0-
58

SW
 1

/4
 2

8-
14

0-
58

N
W

 1
/4

 2
8-

14
0-

58

SE
 1

/4
 2

9-
14

0-
58

SW
 1

/4
 2

9-
14

0-
58

N
W

 1
/4

 2
9-

14
0-

58
N

E 
1/

4 
29

-1
40

-5
8

N
W

 1
/4

 3
3-

14
0-

58
N

W
 1

/4
 3

2-
14

0-
58

N
E 

1/
4 

32
-1

40
-5

8

1"
=1

00
sc

al
e

50
0

fe
et

50
10

0

Sh
ey

en
ne

 R
ive

r

A
N

N
EX

A
TI

O
N

 E
XH

IB
IT

Pa
rc

el
 A

, A
ud

ito
r's

 L
ot

 3
, L

ot
 3

 O
xb

ow
 A

dd
iti

on
, a

nd
 T

ra
ct

 A
Lo

t 1
 B

lo
ck

 3
 W

oo
dl

an
d 

Pa
rk

 S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 a
ll 

be
in

g 
in

 th
e

So
ut

he
as

t Q
ua

rt
er

 o
f S

ec
tio

n 
Tw

en
ty

-N
in

e 
(2

9)
;

Pa
rc

el
s 

B
 a

nd
 E

 b
ei

ng
 in

 th
e 

N
or

th
ea

st
 Q

ua
rt

er
 o

f S
ec

tio
n

Th
irt

y-
Tw

o 
(3

2)
; a

nd
 P

ar
ce

ls
 C

 a
nd

 D
 b

ei
ng

 in
 th

e 
N

or
th

w
es

t
Q

ua
rt

er
 o

f S
ec

tio
n 

Th
irt

y-
Th

re
e 

(3
3)

 a
ll 

w
ith

in
 T

ow
ns

hi
p 

O
ne

H
un

dr
ed

 F
or

ty
 (1

40
) N

or
th

, R
an

ge
 F

ift
y-

Ei
gh

t (
58

) W
es

t o
f t

he
Fi

fth
 P

rin
ci

pa
l M

er
id

ia
n,

 w
ith

in
 B

ar
ne

s 
C

ou
nt

y,
 N

or
th

 D
ak

ot
a

C
IT

Y 
LI

M
IT

S

Pa
rc

el
s 

Be
in

g 
An

ne
xe

d

N
O

TE
: P

or
tio

ns
 o

f L
ot

 3
 O

xb
ow

 A
dd

iti
on

 a
nd

 T
ra

ct
 A

 L
ot

 1
 B

lo
ck

 3
 W

oo
dl

an
d 

Pa
rk

 S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 w
er

e 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 a
nn

ex
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

ci
ty

be
fo

re
 b

ei
ng

 p
la

tte
d.

 T
he

 e
nt

ire
ty

 o
f L

ot
 3

 O
xb

ow
 A

dd
iti

on
 a

nd
 T

ra
ct

 A
 L

ot
 1

 B
lo

ck
 3

 W
oo

dl
an

d 
Pa

rk
 S

ub
di

vi
si

on
 w

ill 
be

 a
nn

ex
ed

 in
to

th
e 

C
ity

 o
f V

al
le

y 
C

ity
 w

ith
 th

is
 A

nn
ex

at
io

n.

VI
C

IN
IT

Y 
M

AP

PA
G

E 
2

Ex
is

tin
g 

C
ity

 L
im

its



 

 
Task Order Form 

EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.  
Page 1 

 
 
 
 
Task Order: Valley City NW Water Tower Study  

 
 

In accordance with Paragraph 1.01 of the Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task 
Order Edition, dated January 1, 2021 ("Agreement"), Owner and Engineer agree as follows: 
 

1. Background Data 

a. Effective Date of Task Order: February 4, 2025 
 

b. Owner: City of Valley City 
 

c. Engineer: KLJ Engineering LLC 
 

d. Specific Project (title): Valley City NW Water Tower Study 
 

e. Specific Project (description): Environmental Documentation, Preliminary Design, Final Design 
and Bidding & Negotiations 
 

2. Services of Engineer 

A. The specific services to be provided or furnished by Engineer under this Task Order are:  

 set forth in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, and attached to and incorporated as part of this Task Order. 

B. Designing to a Construction Cost Limit – Not Used 

C. Other Services – Not Used 

D. All of the services included above comprise Basic Services for purposes of Engineer’s compensation 
under this Task Order. 

3. Additional Services 

A. Additional Services that may be authorized or necessary under this Task Order are: Not Used 

4. Owner's Responsibilities 

Owner shall have those responsibilities set forth in Article 2 of the Agreement and in Exhibit B. 
 

5. Task Order Schedule   

In addition to any schedule provisions provided in Exhibit A or elsewhere, the parties shall meet the following 
schedule: Not Used 

 

This is a Task Order for KLJ Project No. 2204-01901-2, 
consisting of 3 pages, plus attachments. 



 

 
Task Order Form 

EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.  
Page 2 

6. Payments to Engineer 

A. Owner shall pay Engineer for services rendered under this Task Order as follows: 

 Description of Service Amount Basis of  
Compensation 

1.  Basic Services   Hourly Rates 
  a. Environmental Documentation $29,000.00  
  b. Preliminary Design $103,000.00  
  c. Final Design $198,500.00  
  d. Bidding & Negotiations $19,500.00  
   

   
TOTAL COMPENSATION (lines 1.a-d) $350,000.00  
   
2.  Additional Services  (N/A)   

   
Compensation items and totals based in whole or in part on Hourly Rates or Direct Labor are estimates 
only. Estimated totals included in the breakdown by phases incorporate Engineer’s labor, overhead, 
profit, reimbursable expenses (if any), and Consultants’ charges, if any. Engineer shall not exceed the total 
compensation amount unless approved in writing by the Owner. 

B.   The terms of payment are set forth in Article 4 of the Agreement and in the applicable governing 
provisions of Exhibit C. 

7. Consultants retained as of the Effective Date of the Task Order: Moore Engineering 

8. Other Modifications to Agreement and Exhibits: None 

 
9. Attachments: 

Exhibit A – Scope of Services – NW Water Tower: Environmental Documentation & Final Design 

10. Other Documents Incorporated by Reference: 

January 1, 2021 Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

11. Terms and Conditions  

Execution of this Task Order by Owner and Engineer shall make it subject to the terms and conditions of the 
Agreement (as modified above), which Agreement is incorporated by this reference. Engineer is authorized 
to begin performance upon its receipt of a copy of this Task Order signed by Owner. 

 
  
 



 

 
Task Order Form 

EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.  
Page 3 

 

 
OWNER: City of Valley City  ENGINEER: KLJ Engineering LLC 
   
By:   By:  
   
   
Print Name:   Print Name:   
   
   
Title:              Title:   
   
  Firm’s Certificate No. (if required): 061-C 
  State of: North Dakota 

 
Witness:   Witness: 
   
By:   By:  
   
   
Print Name: Brenda Klein  Print Name:   
   
   
Title:           Finance Director  Title:   
   
 
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE FOR TASK ORDER: 

   
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE FOR TASK ORDER:   

   
   
Name: Gwen Crawford  Name: Chad Petersen 
   
   
Title: City Administrator  Title: Senior Project Manager 
   
   
Address: 254 2nd Ave NE 

Valley City, ND 58072-0380 
 Address: 1010 4th Ave SW 

Valley City, ND 58072 
   
   
E-Mail: gcrawford@valleycity.us  E-Mail: chad.petersen@kljeng.com  
   
   
Phone: (701)845-8120  Phone: (701)845-9446 

 
 
 
 

mailto:chad.petersen@kljeng.com


 

 

 
January 30, 2025 

 
EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
KLJ ENGINEERING LLC 

 
Valley City NW Water Tower:  

Environmental Documentation and Final Design 
 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this appendix is to describe the scope of services and responsibilities required to complete 
the environmental documentation and final design for the Valley City Northwest Water Tower.    

3.1. Environmental Documentation (Moore Lead) 
 

x Project Startup and Kickoff Meeting 
x Project Management with team 
x Preparation and submission of solicitation of views letters 
x Review of agency comments 
x Preparation of draft environmental report 
x Final Environmental Report 

3.2. Preliminary Design (Moore Lead) 
 

x Prepare and update Project Work Plan 
x Project Startup and Kickoff Meeting 
x Project Management with team 
x Communication with City Staff & KLJ 
x Weekly correspondence with Design Team 
x Submit ND One-Call; verify no utilities in project area (task to be completed by KLJ) 
x Dry Utility Coordination (task to be completed by KLJ) 
x Complete Topographic and Boundary Survey, Aerial Imagery (task to be completed by KLJ and 

items provided to Moore) 
x Bring KLJ existing conditions from topographic survey into Moore CADD 
x Coordinate with Utility Companies on maps and utility location verification 
x Site Visits - Field Review - Project Walkthrough, Meeting with City 
x Coordination for Geotechnical Report 
x Identify boring locations 
x FAA approval, documentation, coordination 
x Establish overflow elevation 
x Confirm tank size 
x Plan Preparation 
x Prepare Site Removals Sheet 
x Prepare Site Layout Sheet 



 

 

x Coordination with City on Logo 
x Engage Electrical Engineer and tank consultant 
x Water Tower Details, Prelim. Logo's 
x Demolition plan - Stand Pipe and Water Tower 
x Zoning water changes - water main connections and removals 
x Verify Water System Modeling 
x Updates to Water Modeling - Water Main Sizing (Pressures/Flows) 
x Prepare Preliminary Project Manual 
x Outline Specifications 
x Prepare Preliminary Bid Proposal and Engineer's Estimate 
x Hold Preliminary Plan Review Meeting with City and KLJ 
x Perform an internal QC/QA review of Prelim Plans 
x Attend City Council Meetings 
x Funding Assistance DWSRF/DWR 
x Correspondence with City 
x Prepare documents/attend DWR Meetings/Secure DWR Cost Share for Design (task to be 

completed by KLJ) 
x Establish and implement public involvement strategies 
x Prepare and attend public input meeting 

3.3. Final Design (Moore Lead) 
 

x Biweekly Correspondence with Design Team 
x Review and incorporate Geotechnical Report Recommendations 
x Field Review 
x Prepare and submit DWR Application (task to be completed by KLJ) 
x Correspondence with NDDEQ 
x Plan Preparation 
x Cover, TOC, and General Layout 
x Plan Notes 
x Survey Layout Sheets 
x Existing Conditions Sheet 
x Site Removal Sheet for Water Tower and Standpipe 
x Tank floor plan 
x Tank profile sheet 
x Prepare Water Tower Details 
x Verify operations of pumps, meters, and check valves 
x Logo Design and Color Palette Coordination 
x Plan & Profile Drawing Sheets - water main (zoning changes) 
x Typical Section Sheets 
x Erosion Control/SWPPP Drawing Sheets 
x Foundation Design - Soil as per Geotech 
x Design Review Meetings 
x Project Manual 
x Bidding Contract Documents (Front End Documents) 
x Specs (General & Technical) 



 

 

x Update Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Cost - 90% 
x Plan-in-Hand, 90% Plan QMP & Stakeholder Review 
x Incorporate Stakeholder and QMP Comments 
x Update Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Cost - 100% 
x Coordination with Subs (electrical and tank consultant) on Specifications 
x Provide submittal-set to NDDEQ for review; Response to NDDEQ 
x Plan PDF and stamping/signing 
x Present Final Plans and Specifications for approval 
x Prepare documents/ attend DWR Meeting/Secure Cost Share for Construction 
x QA/QC 

3.4. Bidding & Negotiations (Moore Lead) 
 

x Upload final PDF bidding documents on QuestCDN 
x Coordinate advertisement in official, daily and trade newspapers 
x Answering phone calls from prospective bidders 
x Prepare Addenda 
x Bid Opening Via Quest VPN 
x Prepare Bid Tabulation 
x Prepare Engineer's Statement of Cost & Engineer's Recommendation to Award letter 
x Attend City Council meeting for Award of Contract 
x Correspondence with Contractor 
x Assemble & Route Contracts for Execution 
x Project Management 

 

 





 

 
Task Order Form 

EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.  
Page 1 

 
 
 
 
Task Order: Hyland Park Estates Water, Sewer, Storm Sewer & Paving Improvements  

 
In accordance with Paragraph 1.01 of the Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task 
Order Edition, dated January 1, 2021 ("Agreement"), Owner and Engineer agree as follows: 
 

1. Background Data 

a. Effective Date of Task Order: February 4, 2025 
 

b. Owner: City of Valley City 
 

c. Engineer: KLJ Engineering LLC 
 

d. Specific Project (title): Hyland Park Estates Final Design 
 

e. Specific Project (description): Final Plans and Specifications for Water, Sanitary Sewer, Storm 
Sewer & Paving Improvements along 8 ½ Ave NW and 10th St NW 

 
 

2. Services of Engineer 

A. The specific services to be provided or furnished by Engineer under this Task Order are:  

 set forth in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, and attached to and incorporated as part of this Task Order. 

B. Resident Project Representative (RPR) Services – Not Used 

C. Designing to a Construction Cost Limit – Not Used 

D. Other Services – Not Used 

E. All of the services included above comprise Basic Services for purposes of Engineer’s compensation 
under this Task Order. 

3. Additional Services 

A. Additional Services that may be authorized or necessary under this Task Order are: Not Used 

4. Owner's Responsibilities 

Owner shall have those responsibilities set forth in Article 2 of the Agreement and in Exhibit B.  
 
 
 

 

This is Task Order No. 2504-00261-1, 
consisting of 3 pages. 



 

 
Task Order Form 

EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.  
Page 2 

5. Task Order Schedule   

In addition to any schedule provisions provided in Exhibit A or elsewhere, the parties shall meet the following 
schedule: Not Used 

6. Payments to Engineer 

A. Owner shall pay Engineer for services rendered under this Task Order as follows: 

Description of Service Amount Basis of  
Compensation 

1.  Basic Services    
  a. Design Engineering $50,500 Hourly 
   

   
TOTAL COMPENSATION (lines 1.a) $50,500  
   
2.  Additional Services  (N/A)  

    
Compensation items and totals based in whole or in part on Hourly Rates or Direct Labor are estimates 
only. Estimated totals included in the breakdown by phases incorporate Engineer’s labor, overhead, 
profit, reimbursable expenses (if any), and Consultants’ charges, if any. Engineer shall not exceed the total 
compensation amount unless approved in writing by the Owner. 

B.   The terms of payment are set forth in Article 4 of the Agreement and in the applicable governing 
provisions of Exhibit C. 

7. Consultants retained as of the Effective Date of the Task Order: None 

8. Other Modifications to Agreement and Exhibits: None 

9. Attachments: 

Exhibit A – Scope of Services –Design Engineering 

10. Other Documents Incorporated by Reference: 

January 1, 2021 Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 



 

 
Task Order Form 

EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.  
Page 3 

11. Terms and Conditions  

Execution of this Task Order by Owner and Engineer shall make it subject to the terms and conditions of the 
Agreement (as modified above), which Agreement is incorporated by this reference. Engineer is authorized 
to begin performance upon its receipt of a copy of this Task Order signed by Owner. 

 
 OWNER: City of Valley City  ENGINEER: KLJ Engineering LLC 
   
By:   By:  
   
   
Print Name: Gwen Crawford  Print Name:   
   
   
Title:            City Administrator  Title:   
   
  Firm’s Certificate No. (if required): 061-C 
  State of: North Dakota 

Witness:   Witness: 
   
By:   By:  
   
   
Print Name: Brenda Klein  Print Name:   
   
   
Title:           Finance Director  Title:   
   
 
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE FOR TASK ORDER: 

   
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE FOR TASK ORDER:   

   
   
Name: Gwen Crawford  Name: Chad Petersen 
   
   
Title: City Administrator  Title: Senior Project Manager 
   
   
Address: 254 2nd Ave NE 

Valley City, ND 58072-0380 
 Address: 1010 4th Ave SW 

Valley City, ND 58072 
   
   
E-Mail: gcrawford@valleycity.us  E-Mail: chad.petersen@kljeng.com  
   
   
Phone: (701)845-8120  Phone: (701)845-9446 

 

mailto:chad.petersen@kljeng.com


 

 

 
EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
DESIGN ENGINEERING 

 
January 30, 2025 

 
KLJ Engineering LLC 

 
Hyland Park Estates – Final Design 

 
8 ½ Ave NW and 10th St NW 

Water, Sanitary Sewer, Storm Sewer and Paving Improvements 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this exhibit is to describe the scope of services and responsibilities required to complete 
the design engineering services. KLJ Engineering, LLC (KLJ) will provide Project Management, design and 
preparation of final construction plans, specifications, and estimates.  

3.1. PROJECT MANAGEMENT & COORDINATION 
Management & Coordination 
KLJ will manage the project and provide overall coordination of the work completed by the project 
teams. This work will consist of managing work assignments, internal team meetings, client coordination, 
project budget and schedule.  

Cost-Share Requests – North Dakota Department of Water Resources 
KLJ will submit cost-share request to the North Dakota Department of Water Resources for preliminary 
engineering necessary to develop plans and specifications for the water main for the referenced project. 
Following the completion of the plans and specifications, KLJ will submit cost-share request for the 
construction of the water main.  

3.2. PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING 
Field Survey 
KLJ will complete pickup surveys to supplement work completed to date for items such as topography, 
utility locations and right of way. KLJ will download the survey information for use in the preliminary 
and design phases of the project. 

Construction Cost Estimates 
KLJ will prepare preliminary construction cost estimates. A total preliminary cost estimate for right of 
way, utility relocations and engineering services will be included in this section. 

Utility Coordination 
KLJ will identify utility conflicts and work with the utility companies to inventory and develop any 
relocation or replacement plans for existing utility facilities. KLJ will facilitate the meeting with affected 
utilities, if deemed necessary. 



 

 

3.3. PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 
City Commission Meetings (2) 
KLJ will attend up to two City Commission Meetings at an appropriate time in the project development 
to discuss proposed improvement alternatives. 

Public Informational Meeting 
KLJ will prepare for and attend a public informational meeting for the proposed project during the special 
assessment process. The purpose of the meeting is to present to the public the project and obtain 
comments on the proposed improvements. The meeting will be held after the preliminary engineering 
report has been completed. The format for the meeting will be an open house format.  

3.4. PLAN DEVELOPMENT 
Roadway Design & Plan Preparation 
The roadway design will include design and plan development for the following plan sections per NDDOT 
Design Manual: 

x Section 1 Title Sheet 
x Section 2 Table of Contents/Standard Drawings 
x Section 4 Scope of Work 
x Section 6 Notes  
x Section 8 Estimate of Quantities 
x Section 10 Basis of Estimate 
x Section 20 General Details 
x Section 30 Typical Sections 
x Section 40 Removals 
x Section 50 Inlet & Manhole Summary 
x Section 55 Utility Plan & Profile (Water and Sanitary Sewer) 
x Section 60 Plan & Profile (Roadway and Storm) 
x Section 76 Temporary Erosion Control 
x Section 77 Permanent Erosion Control 
x Section 90 Paving Layouts 
x Section 100 Work Zone Traffic Control 
x Section 200 Cross Sections 

 

90% Plan Submittal and Review 
KLJ will assemble and distribute plans at approximately 90% completion for review by the City. KLJ will 
also conduct and document internal QC/QA reviews within this activity.  

Final Plans Revisions and Submittal 
Revisions from the review will be incorporated into the final plans. KLJ will complete and document a 
final internal QA review.  

Opinion of Cost 
KLJ will create the Opinion of Cost at 90% plans and Final Plans. 

Bid Opening 
KLJ will provide interpretive assistance during the bidding process. KLJ will assist Valley City in analysis 
of bids received and recommending award of work. 





 

CONTRACT FOR CUSTODIAL MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

  

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between THE CITY OF VALLEY CITY, a municipal 

corporation of Barnes County, North Dakota, hereinafter called “City”, and K & S CARPET CLEANERS & 

RESTORATION INC., 148 12th Avenue NE, Valley City, North Dakota 58072, hereinafter called “Contractor”. 

 

 The City, desiring to hire Contractor to perform designated custodial maintenance services, and 

the Contractor, desiring to provide said services, hereby agree as follows: 

 

1. Contractor, as an independent contractor and not as an employee, agrees to perform custodial 

maintenance services in the City buildings identified on Exhibit A attached hereto.  Said Exhibit A 

further sets forth the type and frequency of maintenance services to be performed in each 

building on a regular basis, except for holidays observed by the City.  The work performed by 

Contractor is subject to inspection by City.  Deficiencies in service will be determined solely by 

City and reported to Contractor.   

 

2. This Agreement shall commence on February 1, 2025, and will continue for a period of three years, 

ending on January 31, 2028.  This Agreement will automatically renew on an annual basis 

thereafter, subject to the same terms and conditions, unless (i) the Agreement is terminated or 

(ii) the parties negotiate and enter into a new agreement.   

 
3. The City may terminate this Agreement for any reason with 30 days’ prior written notice. In the 

event of non-performance, breach or default of the Agreement, the City may in its sole discretion 

terminate the Agreement immediately.  Outstanding payments for services due to Contractor at 

the time of termination will be paid unless said services have been deemed by the City to 

constitute the basis for the non-performance, breach or default.  Examples of non-performance, 

default or breach include but are not limited to: 

 
a. Missing a scheduled cleaning date (unless Contractor notifies the City in advance and the 

work is performed the following business day). 

b. Failure to fully comply with all the provisions, terms, specifications and requirements of 

this Agreement. 

c. Dishonesty, theft, criminal act(s) or other such action(s) by the Contractor and/or 

employees or agents of the Contractor. 



d. Failure to provide an excellent level of service or high-quality supplies and materials after 

notification by the City. 

 

4. Contractor shall be paid at an agreed upon rate of $35.00 for each hour performing the prescribed 

services at the following facilities: 

a. City Hall: two hours, two days per week.  Maximum of four hours per week. 

b. Police Station: two hours, three days per week.  Maximum of six hours per week. 

c. National Guard: Maximum of two hours per week.  

d. Transfer Station: Maximum of two hours per week. 

 

5. In addition, Contractor shall be paid a fee of $346 per month for performing the prescribed 

services at the Service Center. This is to include two hours of cleaning, one day per week (Tuesday 

or Thursday).  

 

6. Contractor shall submit a monthly voucher to the City on or before the last day of each month, 

which shall be processed and paid with the regular City bills. 

 
7. Cleaning of the Police Station and National Guard must occur during regular business hours.  No 

employee of the Contractor may work at any other City facility outside of normal business hours 

unless the employee has established an employment history with Contractor and has performed 

services for City for at least two years. 

 
8. The City will supply cleaning agents, garbage bags, vacuums, mop and mop bucket. Contractor 

will supply all other cleaning supplies and materials not provided by City which are reasonably 

necessary to perform the prescribed custodial maintenance services.  The quality of the cleaning 

agents, supplies and materials shall be determined solely by the City. 

 

9. The City will maintain public liability and property insurance upon its premises.  The Contractor 

assumes full liability and responsibility for all activities performed by Contractor, its agents and 

employees pursuant to this Agreement and agrees to indemnify and hold the City harmless from 

any claims, damages, suits, actions, liabilities and costs of any kind or nature brought against the 

City, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers arising or resulting from or in any way 

connected with the Agreement and the action, actions, or inaction of the Contractor, its agents 

and employees.  The Contractor will maintain liability insurance coverage covering performance 



under this Agreement, the City shall be named as an additional insured, and the Contractor will 

provide a copy thereof to the City. 

 
10. The Contractor agrees that it shall make no individual claims whatsoever against any elected 

official, appointed official, authorized representative, agent or employee of the City for, or on 

account of, anything done or omitted to be done in connection with this Agreement. 

 
11. The City maintains a Drugfree Workplace.  Sale, distribution, possession, use or being under the 

influence of alcohol and/or drugs at the workplace poses a serious threat to the health and safety 

of employees and to the City, and independent contractors performing work in city facilities are 

prohibited from engaging in these acts.  The City will take appropriate action based on reasonable 

suspicion of a violation of this provision. 

 

12. The City and Contractor shall comply with all provisions and requirements of Title VI of the Civil 

Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended by the Equal 

Employment Opportunity Act of 1972 and the Civil Rights Act of 1991; and the Americans With 

Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended.  During the performance of this Agreement, the parties shall 

not discriminate against any person or group of persons on the basis of age, race, color, religion, 

sex, mental or physical disability, national origin, or income status. 

 
13. Smoking is not permitted on or within 20 feet of City property at any time. 

 
14. Only authorized employees of Contractor are permitted to access City facilities.  Guests are 

prohibited.  Subcontractors are not permitted under this Agreement. 

 
15. No employee of Contractor shall disturb, touch or move items on or in desks, cabinets, boxes, 

tables, etc, including papers, phones, office machines and computers, without consent of the City. 

 

Dated this ________ day of February, 2025.  Dated this ________ day of February, 2025. 

 

CITY OF VALLEY CITY     K&S CARPET CLEANERS AND RESTORATION 

 

______________________________________   ______________________________________ 

Gwen Crawford      Name:  
City Administrator     Its: 



K&
S 

Ca
rp

et
 C

le
an

er
s &

 R
es

to
ra

tio
n 

In
c.

$3
5/

Ho
ur

s
Ci

ty
 H

al
l

56
0.

00
$ 

   
  

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 so

m
e 

cle
an

in
g 

pr
od

uc
ts

 in
clu

di
ng

 to
w

el
s, 

m
op

 e
ss

en
tia

ls 
&

 ch
em

ica
ls

Po
lic

e 
st

at
io

n
84

0.
00

$ 
   

  

Na
tio

na
l G

ua
rd

28
0.

00
$ 

   
  

Ci
ty

 su
pp

lie
s v

ac
uu

m
s, 

ga
rb

ag
e 

ba
gs

, c
le

an
in

g 
ag

en
ts

 a
nd

 
eq

ui
pm

en
t.

Tr
an

sf
er

 S
ta

tio
n

28
0.

00
$ 

   
  

Se
rv

ice
 C

en
te

r
34

6.
00

$ 
   

  2,
30

6.
00

$ 
 

Se
rv

ic
eM

as
te

r

Ci
ty

 H
al

l
1,

40
0.

00
$ 

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 p
ro

vi
de

s a
ll 

cle
an

in
g 

su
pp

lie
s a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t
Po

lic
e 

st
at

io
n

1,
30

0.
00

$ 
 

Na
tio

na
l G

ua
rd

40
0.

00
$ 

   
  

Tr
an

sf
er

 S
ta

tio
n

40
0.

00
$ 

   
  

Se
rv

ice
 C

en
te

r
80

0.
00

$ 
   

  4,
30

0.
00

$ 
 

M
in

dt
 C

on
di

tio
n

$9
,8

00
 P

er
 M

on
th

 fo
r a

ll 
lo

ca
tio

ns
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 p
ro

vi
de

s a
ll 

cle
an

in
g 

su
pp

lie
s a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t

*W
ill

 d
o 

a 
de

ep
 cl

ea
ni

ng
 e

ve
ry

 6
 m

on
th

s, 
th

is 
do

es
 n

ot
 in

clu
de

 ca
rp

et
 cl

ea
ni

ng
, f

lo
or

 w
ax

/s
tr

ip



  
   
City Hall   
254 2nd Ave NE  ph: 701-845-1700 
Valley City, ND  58072-0390  www.valleycity.us 
 
  
 

REQUEST FOR QUOTES – CUSTODIAL MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 

The City of Valley City is requesting quotes for custodial maintenance services at the following 
locations: 
  
  City Hall, 254 2nd Ave. NE 
  Police Station & Municipal Court, 216 2nd Ave. NE 
  Service Center, 136 4th Ave. SE 
  Transfer Station, 11490 35th St. SE 
  National Guard Armory 747 7th St. SE 
 
Form:   Name of business 
  Name of contact person 
  Business address 
  Business phone 
  Acceptance of City’s terms and any proposed exceptions  
  Monthly or hourly rate 
 
Deadline:  January 28, 2025, 4:00pm 
 
Submit to: City Auditor’s Office 
  City Hall 
  254 2nd Ave NE 
  Valley City, ND 58072 
  jhintz@valleycity.us 
 
Terms: 
 

1. Contract approval date: February 4, 2025. 
2. Contract start date: February 5, 2025. 
3. Initial term: Three years. 
4. Requested services and cleaning schedule are attached. 
5. Maximum anticipated weekly hours & time of service: 

a. City Hall: Six hours.  M-Th 8am-5pm; F 8am-4pm.   
b. Police Station & Municipal Court: Six hours.  M-F 8am-5pm. 
c. Service Center: Four hours.  M-F 4pm-7am.  
d. Transfer Station: Two hours.  M-F 7am-4pm. 
e. National Guard Armory: Two hours.  Regular business hours, prior approval required. 

6. Services will not be provided on City holidays or during emergency closures. 
7. A key may be provided to Contractor for after-hours service if requested by City.  Contractor 

is responsible for maintaining security of key and is further responsible for damages if key is 
lost, including cost of changing locks or reprogramming security system. 

mailto:jhintz@valleycity.us


8. If requested, Contractor shall provide sufficient information for City to perform background 
check on individuals working in City buildings. 

9. Minimum requirements: 18 years of age; valid ND driver’s license. 
10. Contractor shall submit a monthly voucher to the City on or before the 25th of each month, 

which shall be processed and paid with the regular City bills. 
11. Contractor will supply all cleaning supplies, vacuum and other tools, equipment, and 

materials reasonably necessary to perform the prescribed custodial maintenance services.  
The quality of the cleaning agents, supplies and materials shall be determined solely by the 
City. 

12. The City will maintain public liability and property insurance upon its premises.  The 
Contractor assumes full liability and responsibility for all activities performed by Contractor, 
its agents and employees pursuant to the Agreement and agrees to indemnify and hold the 
City harmless from any claims, damages, suits, actions, liabilities and costs of any kind or 
nature brought against the CIty, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers arising or 
resulting from or in any way connected with the Agreement and the action, actions, or 
inaction of the Contractor, its agents and employees.  The Contractor will maintain liability 
insurance coverage covering performance under the Agreement, the City shall be named as 
an additional insured, and the Contractor will provide a copy thereof to the City. 

13. The Contractor agrees that it shall make no individual claims whatsoever against any elected 
official, appointed official, authorized representative, agent or employee of the City for, or on 
account of, anything done or omitted to be done in connection with the Agreement. 

14. The City maintains a Drugfree Workplace.  Sale, distribution, possession, use or being under 
the influence of alcohol and/or drugs at the workplace poses a serious threat to the health and 
safety of employees and to the City, and independent contractors performing work in city 
facilities are prohibited from engaging in these acts.  The City will take appropriate action 
based on reasonable suspicion of a violation of this provision. 

15. Smoking is not permitted on or within 20 feet of City property at any time. 
16. Only authorized employees of Contractor are permitted to access City facilities.  Guests are 

prohibited.  Subcontractors are not permitted under the Agreement. 
17. No employee of Contractor shall disturb, touch or move items on or in desks, cabinets, boxes, 

tables, etc, including papers, phones, office machines and computers, without consent of the 
City. 

18. The City may terminate the Agreement for any reason with 30 days’ prior written notice. In 
the event of non-performance, breach or default of the Agreement, the City may in its sole 
discretion terminate the Agreement immediately.  Outstanding payments for services due to 
Contractor at the time of termination will be paid unless said services have been deemed by 
the City to constitute the basis for the non-performance, breach or default.  Examples of non-
performance, default or breach include but are not limited to: 
a. Missing a scheduled cleaning date. 
b. Failure to fully comply with all the provisions, terms, specifications and requirements of 

the Agreement. 
c. Dishonesty, theft, criminal act(s) or other such action(s) by the Contractor and/or 

employees or agents of the Contractor. 
d. Failure to provide an excellent level of service or high-quality supplies and materials 

after notification by the City. 
 
 



EX
HI
BI
T 
A 

- C
IT

Y 
HA

LL
 

M
on

da
y

W
ed

ne
sd
ay

M
on

th
ly

Em
pt
y 
Ga

rb
ag
e 
&
 C
ar
db

oa
rd
 R
ec
yc
lin
g

Em
pt
y 
Ga

rb
ag
e 
&
 C
ar
db

oa
rd
 R
ec
yc
lin
g

Cl
ea
n 
Ba

th
ro
om

s, 
w
as
h 
sin

ks
, c
ou

nt
er
s, 

sh
el
ve
s a

nd
 to

ile
ts
.  
Re

fil
l T
oi
le
t P

ap
er
 a
nd

 
Pa
pe

r T
ow

el
s.

Cl
ea
n 
Ba

th
ro
om

s, 
w
as
h 
sin

ks
, c
ou

nt
er
s, 
sh
el
ve
s 

an
d 
to
ile
ts
.  
Re

fil
l T
oi
le
t P

ap
er
 a
nd

 P
ap
er
 T
ow

el
s.

Va
cu
um

 h
al
lw
ay
s &

 tr
af
fic
 a
re
as
. C
le
an

 E
nt
ry
 

W
in
do

w
s &

 C
ity

 H
al
l W

in
do

w
s

Va
cu
um

 h
al
lw
ay
s &

 tr
af
fic
 a
re
as
. C
le
an

 E
nt
ry
 

W
in
do

w
s &

 C
ity

 H
al
l W

in
do

w
s

Va
cu
um

 a
ll 
ca
rp
et
 a
re
as
 in

 E
as
t p

or
tio

n 
of
 

bu
ild
in
g.
  C
le
an

 m
at
s u

nd
er
 o
ffi
ce
 ch

ai
rs
.

Va
cu
um

 a
ll 
ca
rp
et
 a
re
as
 in

 W
es
t p

or
tio

n 
of
 

bu
ild
in
g.
 C
le
an

 m
at
s u

nd
er
 o
ffi
ce
 ch

ai
rs
.

Du
st
 b
as
eb

oa
rd
s, 
to
ps
 o
f 

pi
ct
ur
es
, w

as
h 
w
al
l b
y 
do

or
s a

nd
 

ba
se
s o

f c
ha
irs
.

W
as
h/
m
op

 a
ll 
til
ed

‐fl
oo

rs
 in
clu

di
ng

 co
rn
er
s, 

m
ov
e 
ru
gs
 w
ith

 m
op

 b
uc
ke
t a

nd
 w
at
er
.

W
as
h/
m
op

 a
ll 
til
ed

‐fl
oo

rs
 in
clu

di
ng

 co
rn
er
s, 
m
ov
e 

ru
gs
 w
ith

 m
op

 b
uc
ke
t a

nd
 w
at
er
.

W
ip
e 
of
f c
ou

nt
er
, s
in
k,
 ta

bl
es
, i
n 
br
ea
k 
ro
om

 
an
d 
ba
th
ro
om

W
ip
e 
of
f c
ou

nt
er
, s
in
k,
 ta

bl
es
, i
n 
br
ea
k 
ro
om

 a
nd

 
ba
th
ro
om

Cl
ea
n 
Va

cu
um

 F
ilt
er

Du
st
 w
in
do

w
 le
dg
es
, t
op

s o
f c
ab
in
et
s &

 
bo

ok
sh
el
ve
s i
n 
ĞĂ
st
 p
or
tio

n 
of
 b
ui
ld
in
g.
 

In
clu

di
ng

 C
om

m
iss
io
n 
Ch

am
be

rs
 &
 C
ha
m
be

r 
Ta
bl
es

Du
st
 w
in
do

w
 le
dg
es
, t
op

s o
f c
ab
in
et
s &

 
bo

ok
sh
el
ve
s i
n 
ǁ
ĞƐ
ƚ p

or
tio

n 
of
 b
ui
ld
in
g.
 

In
clu

di
ng

 C
om

m
iss
io
n 
Ch

am
be

rs
 &
 C
ha
m
be

r 
Ta
bl
es

**
*T
w
o 
tim

es
 p
er
 m

on
th
 cl
ea
n 
M
ay
or
 &
 C
ity

 A
dm

in
ist
ra
to
rs
 O
ffi
ce

In
clu

di
ng

 D
us
tin

g 
Fu
rn
itu

re
, w

in
do

w
 le
dg
es
, 

bo
ok
ca
se
s &

 fi
lin
g 
ca
bi
ne

t. 
W
ip
e 
do

w
n 
ch
ai
rs



EX
HI
BI
T 
B 

Po
lic
e 
St
at
io
n

M
on

da
y

W
ed

ne
sd
ay

Fr
id
ay

M
on

th
ly

Em
pt
y 
Ga

rb
ag
e

Em
pt
y 
Ga

rb
ag
e

Em
pt
y 
Ga

rb
ag
e

Cl
ea
n 
Va

cu
um

 F
ilt
er

Cl
ea
n 
Ba

th
ro
om

s
Cl
ea
n 
Ba

th
ro
om

s
Cl
ea
n 
Ba

th
ro
om

s
Va

cu
um

 &
 D
us
t C

ou
rt
ro
om

 2
 

X'
s a

 m
on

th
 (B

ef
or
e 
Co

ur
t)

Va
cu
um

 H
al
lw
ay
s, 
M
ai
n 
Of
fic
e 
 &
 

Tr
af
fic
 A
re
as

Va
cu
um

 H
al
lw
ay
s, 
M
ai
n 
Of
fic
e 
 &
 

Tr
af
fic
 A
re
as

Va
cu
um

 H
al
lw
ay
s, 
M
ai
n 
Of
fic
e 
 &
 

Tr
af
fic
 A
re
as

Va
cu
um

 &
 D
us
t C

on
fe
re
nc
e 

Ro
om

W
as
h/
m
op

 a
ll 
til
ed

‐fl
oo

rs
 

in
clu

di
ng

 co
rn
er
s, 
m
ov
e 
ru
gs

W
as
h/
m
op

 a
ll 
til
ed

‐fl
oo

rs
 

in
clu

di
ng

 co
rn
er
s, 
m
ov
e 
ru
gs

W
as
h/
m
op

 a
ll 
til
ed

‐fl
oo

rs
 in
clu

di
ng

 
co
rn
er
s, 
m
ov
e 
ru
gs

Va
cu
um

 &
 D
us
t I
nt
er
vi
ew

 
Ro

om
W
ip
e 
of
f c
ou

nt
er
, s
in
k,
 ta

bl
es
, i
n 

br
ea
k 
ro
om

W
ip
e 
of
f c
ou

nt
er
, s
in
k,
 ta

bl
es
, i
n 

br
ea
k 
ro
om

W
ip
e 
of
f c
ou

nt
er
, s
in
k,
 ta

bl
es
, i
n 

br
ea
k 
ro
om

Va
cu
um

 &
 D
us
t S

gt
/O

ffi
ce
r 

Sp
ac
e

*  
No

 o
th
er
 o
ffi
ce
 sp

ac
e 
ne

ed
s 

cle
an
ed

 a
s t
he

y 
cle

an
 th

ei
r o

w
n

**
 C
le
an

 m
at
s u

nd
er
 o
ffi
ce
 ch

ai
rs
 a
s 

ne
ed

ed



EX
HI
BI
T 
C 

NA
TI
O
NA

L G
UA

RD
 C
LE
AN

IN
G 
SC
HE

DU
LE

1 
Da

y 
a 
W
ee
k

M
on

th
ly

Cl
ea
n 
Ba

th
ro
om

s (
3)

Em
pt
y 
Ga

rb
ag
es

Va
cu
um

 R
un

ne
rs
/R
ug
s

W
as
h/
m
op

 a
ll 
til
ed

 fl
oo

rs
 

in
clu

di
ng

 co
rn
er
s, 
m
ov
e 
ru
gs



EX
HI
BI
T 
D 

SE
RV

IC
E 
CE

NT
ER

 C
LE
AN

IN
G 
SC
HE

DU
LE

O
nc
e 
A 
W
ee
k

M
on

th
ly

Em
pt
y 
Ga

rb
ag
e 
&
 R
ec
yc
lin
g 
*

Cl
ea
n 
Ba

th
ro
om

s

Va
cu
um

 h
al
lw
ay
s &

 tr
af
fic
 a
re
as

Du
st
 b
as
eb

oa
rd
s, 
to
ps
 o
f 

pi
ct
ur
es
, w

as
h 
w
al
l b
y 
do

or
s

Va
cu
um

 a
ll 
ca
rp
et
 a
re
as
 in

 W
es
t 

po
rt
io
n 
of
 B
ui
ld
in
g 
‐In

clu
di
ng

 
co
nf
er
en

ce
 ro

om
 &
 co

py
 ro

om
Cl
ea
n 
W
in
do

w
 S
ill
s

W
as
h/
m
op

 a
ll 
til
ed

‐fl
oo

rs
 

in
clu

di
ng

 co
rn
er
s, 
m
ov
e  
ru
gs

Cl
ea
n 
Va

cu
um

 F
ilt
er

W
ip
e 
of
f c
ou

nt
er
, s
in
k,
 ta

bl
es
, i
n 

br
ea
k 
ro
om

Du
st
 w
in
do

w
 le
dg
es
, t
op

s o
f 

ca
bi
ne

ts
 &
 b
oo

ks
he

lv
es

* 
Re

cy
cli
ng

 to
 In
clu

de
 p
ap
er
 &
 

Ca
rd
bo

ar
d

**
 C
le
an

 m
at
s u

nd
er
 o
ffi
ce
 ch

ai
rs
 a
s 

ne
ed

ed



EXHIBIT E  TRANSFER STATION CLEANING SCHEDULE
Once A Week Monthly

Clean transfer station office

Clean Bathrooms and 
breakroom (downstairs) and 
empty the garbage cans

Wipe down counters, window 
ledges and tables Clean walls by doors

Sweep and mop the floors and 
mats‐Move the rugs and mats Dust pictures

Vaccuum the rugs Clean south windows, inside 
and outside


